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The integration and cooperation among the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC)
countries serve as an exemplary model both regionally and internationally. Over
the pastfourdecades, thiscollaborationhasresultedinremarkable achievements
that strengthen joint efforts and deepen integration among the member states.
As the GCC approaches its fifth decade, | am honored to present the ninth
edition of the GCC Statistical Atlas. This edition reflects a comprehensive vision
driven by ambitious goals, shared aspirations, and strategic plans. It is built on
common principles and a unified legacy, focusing on addressing challenges and
preserving accomplishments.

Undoubtedly, statistics are among the most essential pillars for effective
planning and informed decision-making. Building on this understanding, the
member states and the General Secretariat have placed significant emphasis on
advancing statistical efforts. This commitment led to the establishment of the
GCC-Stat, with the Statistical Atlas standing out as one of its most prominent
publications. This Atlas offers a comprehensive collection of statistical indicators
encompassing a wide range of economic, developmental, and social fields within
the GCC countries. It serves as a dynamic example of data sources that aid in
shaping future policies to drive further growth and prosperity for our countries,
in alignment with the vision and directives of Their Majesties and Highnesses,
the leaders of the GCC countries—may Allah protect and safeguard them.

In conclusion, | sincerely thank the member states for their dedication to
advancing statistics and their ongoing support for the initiatives of the GCC-Stat.
| would also like to extend my gratitude and commend all the staff at the GCC-
Stat for their dedicated efforts and valuable contributions in delivering accurate
data and statistics that support decision-makers in formulating effective policies
and making informed decisions.

We pray to Allah Almighty to bless the GCC countries with continued security,
development, and prosperity under the wise leadership of Their Majesties and
Highnesses—may Allah protect and safeguard them—and to grant us all success
in serving our peoples and nations.
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The Statistical Centre for the Cooperation Council for the Arab Countries of the
Gulf (GCC-Stat) is pleased to announce the release of the ninth edition of the GCC
Statistical Atlas. As one of our flagship annual publications, the Atlas continues to
serve as a critical resource in the field of spatial geographic information systems.
The GCC Statistical Atlas offers an innovative approach to presenting statistical
indicators by seamlessly integrating them with geographic information. This
approach enhances accessibility to data, enabling users to conduct deeper and
more comprehensive analyses.

The statistical activities at the GCC-Stat constitute a cornerstone of the
development process across GCC countries. As an essential tool, statistics enable
the measurement of progress and play a pivotal role in achieving comprehensive
development goals. By providing accurate data and reliable indicators on
demographic, social, economic, and environmental variables, we support decision-
makers with essential knowledge, fostering informed policies that enhance the
well-being of citizens across our countries.

The GCC Statistical Atlas is designed to cater to a diverse audience, including

government and private sector entities, media professionals, researchers, academic
institutions, and the general public. The Atlas also functions as an effective tool for
integrating official statistics with geographic information systems, simplifying the
interpretation and analysis of indicators through interactive maps.
Thisedition featuresadiverse range of statistical indicators encompassing numerous
vital areas. It covers a broad spectrum, from population and social statistics that
illustrate demographic changes to transport and communications statistics that
showcase advancements in infrastructure and mobility. The publication also covers
environmental, energy, water and tourism statistics, highlighting the environmental
impact and sustainability efforts in the GCC countries. The publication also
includes statistics on the environment, energy, water and tourism, highlighting the
environmental impact and sustainability initiatives within the GCC countries.

In conclusion, | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks and appreciation to
the statistical agencies in the member states for their unwavering cooperation in
supplying the data essential for the preparation of this Atlas. | would also like to
express my gratitude to the team at the GCC-Stat for their dedicated efforts, which
have resulted in this exceptional publication.

We pray for continued success in our mission to serve the GCC countries and fulfill
the aspirations of their peoples.
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. Introduction

Within the context of the Statistical Center for the Cooperation Council for a2l adall Jgad ygleidl yudao Jgad silaall L 4aroll duilgo (on
the Arab Countries of the Gulf (GCC-Stat) to develop statistical dissemination Jo-hillg & cgiioll Wlilanll J1a gbg & yilaall j il J5lawg jyghhil
tools, in addition to the diversification of statistics and continued development Glogleoll ptai Jlao g8 dnlag duidil Ul aodl g 59 poi o)l
in information technology, particularly in the field of geospatial information dlnipa o83y a0l dadngll @ ogloll Jgn 63l jolll duilasll & dlienll
systems, which transferred the descriptive information into visual map, T =i o o SR e OA_ug el oo ey arm B s
reflecting new dimensions in statistical analysis processes, and emphasizing M@_ﬁ Wi @JJ'Q_]Q_J}A_qu_LLoJ\ﬁA_”@_Jb_o_” el
JgrJ glanll iAol p gy dla uiog ddow & dylny & oglsoll Jgng
oflan] o il s =lla sy yld =)l adall Joa J gl =il yulao
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il Sl e Globgoll (o dcgono (axs) Wang (02023 dyyp=ll
Gllinioll d s Joal o \gualien JA iy & uodl agSlanil g ileal (s
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the importance of the spatial dimension represented by the map, to facilitate

the access to the information in ease and simplified manner, The GCC-Stat is

1
3‘
qi,
?;
i
]

pleased to present to all interested users the ninth edition of (GCC Statistical
Atlas 2023). The GCC Statistical Atlas intends to display set of key indicators

on maps that geospatially show digital statistical facts to meet different

requirements of data usersas well asto provide an updated and comprehensive

overview of the population, vital, social, economic, energy , water, tourism,

N ARy o |.6Jlg aaliuudl lg @ 8Unllg dyslnidllg ducloinllg dygunllg dyla il
transport, communication statistics in the GCC countries in 2023. iy goltoly i R e

. ) iy
The GCC-Stat would like to extend its thanks and appreciation to all National e ==l Iy ga ey

Statistical Offices (NSO) in Member States of the GCC for providing all required Uilagll Llasll6joall éront ja il Jujms g Slasll i Ap0ll 0a0ig
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and necessary data to produce this atlas, and to all GCC-Stat staff members bl jla nla jglholl ol il L opuagil L acligga Jlg 9
for their effective contribution to publish this current release. Y9 pmagma e g ilaall Al ol & rond Jgngo 4 iilg

The GCC-Stat always welcomes any suggestions and feedback to further Glayiso 4l joiuodl aunyi 13480 byl gy puddall 3o ol 3|

improve the Atals in the future. Ju6i o iy wnig opyghail
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. Notes to Users

The GCC Statistical Atlas 2023 intends to provide interested users in government
institutions, private sector, media, employees in the business market, researchers,
statisticians, and users in other educational institutions and the public in general with the
most important statistical indicators spatially associated, as it is considered one of the
integration foundations between official statistics and geographic information systems.
The Atlas presents the most important demographic, social, economic, energy, water
tourism, transport and communication statistics in the GCC countries. It contains a number

of geographical maps that present the most important indicators.

Data sources:

The statistical centers in the GCC countries are the official sources of the geographical
maps and statistics included in this Atlas and other related reports from GCC-STAT, as for
the geospatial data of the United Arab Emirates and the geographic world map data were

obtained from the website of the Environmental Systems Research Institute (esri).

Data reference period:

All indicators refer to 2023 except as indicated in the margins or titles of the maps.

Notifications:

@ The Atlas was prepared by the Geospatial Information Section in cooperation with all the

statistical departments of the Center.

@The maps used in this Atlas cannot be used as reference for political, international and

administrative boundaries, they are only used for statistical representation.

@® Whenever the term “GCC Countries” is mentioned in this Atlas, it refers to the member

countries of the Cooperation Council for the Arab States of the Gulf.

The GCC-Stat is pleased to receive any feedback or suggestions from users which will

improve and enrich the center's upcoming publications.
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Population and Vital Statistics:

Natural Increase Rate:
Difference between live births and deaths per (1,000) population.

Crude Birth Rate:
Number of live births during a given year per (1,000) population at the mid-year.

Crude Death Rate:
Number of deaths during a given year per (1,000) population in the mid-year.

General Marriage Rate:
Number of Marriages during a given year per (1,000) Population (15 years and above) in the mid-year

General Divorce Rate:
Number of Divorces during a given year per (1,000) Population (15 years and above) in the mid-year.

Social Statistics:

Working Age Population:

International working age population is defined according to International Labour Organization (ILO)
standards as all persons aged (15 years and above), there is also a legal age for employment and this
age varies according to each country and its economic situations. In some countries, the legal working
age is (18 years and above), some determined it (16 years and above). While the official statistics
provided by the national and international statistical agencies adopt the international standards of (15

years and above).

Employed:

All persons of working age (15 years and above), who during the reference period worked to produce
goods or provide services in return of cash or in kind payment, or for profit from self-operating
businesses owned fully or partially , as well as persons working for family or other members. Moreover,
this category include Employed persons but not at work due to temporary absence for certain holiday,
sick leave or any other reason.
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Early Childhood Development (Nurseries and Kindergarten): (Jlabll yaliyg wlilaall) 6 4u0ll gaklldgeis” -

The stage of promoting the early development of children in cognitive, physical, ocial and emotional as
well as, to introduce young children to organized education outside the family environment. This stage is
called Level Zero according to the International Standard Classification of Education (ISCED), it refers to
early childhood education programs that have a deliberate educational component. These programs aim
to develop social and emotional skills necessary to participate in school and society. These programs also
develop some of the skills necessary to prepare for academic education and prepare children for primary
education. Early childhood development is targeting children aged zero to less than (3) years, known as

nurseries and the age group from (3) years to pre-primary which called kindergartens.

Energy and Environment Statistics:

Electricity:

The transfer of energy through the physical phenomena involving electric charges and their impacts
when connections are off or in motion.. Electricity can be generated through different processes such
as the conversion of potential energy from running water, waterfalls,wind and wave movement; direct
conversion of solar radiation through photovoltaic processes; or through the combustion of fuel.

Crude Oil:

Is a mineral component of natural origin consisting of a mixture of hydrocarbons and other impurities
such as sulfur. It exists in the liquid form under normal surface temperature and pressure, its physical
properties (density, viscosity ...etc.) are highly variable. This category contains condensates extracted
from associated and non-associated gas in crude oil which mixed with crude oil commercial flows.

Natural Gas:

It consists of several gases and it is formed in deposits below the surface of the earth, whether
in the form of liquid or gaseous, and it is mainly formed from methane. Natural gas includes both
"Nonassociated" gas produced from hydrocarbon producing fields only in gaseous form, "associated"
gas produced in conjunction with crude oil in addition to methane extracted from coal mine "mines gas".

Natural Gas Liquids (NGL):

Are liquid or liquefied hydrocarbons extracted from natural gas in separation facilities or gas processing
plants. Natural gas Liquids include ethane, propane, butane pentane and the enhanced pentane
(sometimes referred to as natural gasoline gas or intensification plant).The natural gas may be extracted
with crude oil (associated gas) or from a gas field without crude oil. Natural gas liquids can be removed
from the flow of natural gas near the wellhead or transferred to a natural gas processing plant. In the
event of gas processing and crude oil production, it is common to re-inject limited amount of natural gas
liquids condensate products into the flow of crude oil.
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Volume of Treated Wastewater:

The amount of wastewater, which had been treated and reused
The Volume of Reused Water:

Used water directly received from another user with or without treatment for further use.
It also includes treated wastewater received for further use from treatment plants. It does
not include water discharged into the watercourses and used again downstream. Excludes
recycling water within industrial sites.

Total Water Distributed by Water Supplies Sector :
Total freshwater provided by public water supply industry minus losses during transport.

Desalinated Water Production:
Total volume of water extracted from desalination of seawater and brackish water.

The Quantity of Fresh Groundwater Extracted:
The volume of water extracted by economic units from aquifers and springs within the
territory of the country over one year.

M Foreign Trade Statistics :

Intra-Trade:
Inter-trade refers to all commodity flows between the GCC countries for total inter-commodity

exports, and it consists of:
(a). Intra-national merchandise exports: It is GCC countries exports of national origin intra-
goods (including compensatory products that its origin changes after internal processing from
foreign to domestic) from any part of the statistical territory of the GCC countries, including
free zones and customs warehouses. These exports are divided into:

- Non-oil national merchandise exports.

- Oil exports.
(b). Re-exports among the GCC countries: It refers to all foreign goods that were previously
imported and subjected to all customs procedures, and then re-exported within the statistical
territory of the GCC countries.

The value of total merchandise exports is calculated on FOB (Free on Board) basis and
includes the value of the goods, in addition to all expenses, until it reaches the board of the
carrier or customs transit point.
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Total Exports of Goods:
Consist of:
(a). National Merchandise Exports: the GCC countries national origin goods exported
outside the GCC countries (including compensatory products that its origin changes after
internal processing from foreign to domestic) from any part of the statistical territories in
the GCC countries, including free zones and customs warehouses.
These exports are divided into:

- Domestic non-oil merchandise exports.

- Oil exports.
(b). Re-exports: the foreign goods that are re-exported from any part of the statistical
territories in the GCC countries, which are exported outside the GCC countries, including
free zones and customs warehouses.
The value of the total exports is calculated based on free on board (f.0.b.) valuation. It
includes the value of goods, and all expenses till it reaches the board of the carrier or
customs transit point.
Total Imports of Goods:

Refers to all goods imported to the statistical territory of the GCC countries to meed the
local needs, which subjected to all customs procedures enforced in the customs release of
imported goods whether they are subjected to customs duties or exempted, these imports
are divided into:

(a). Imports of foreign goods (including compensatory products after external processing
that changes its origin from domestic to foreign) which is imported to the GCC countries
through the free circulation area, the internal processing areas, the free industrial zones,
the customs warehouses or the free trade zones.

(b). Domestic goods that are re-imported into the free trade area, internal processing
areas, free industrial zones, customs warehouses or free circulation area.

The value of commodity imports is calculated based on a (C.I.F). It includes the value of
goods in the place of production plus cost of freight and insurance fees, until the time of
arrival at the customs center of the importing country.

The Volume of Trade Exchange:
Is the total value of total exports and total commodity imports.

Trade Balance:

Is the difference between the total value of exported and imported goods . when the
value of exports is higher it is referred to as surplus in the trade balance, whereas when the
value of imports is higher, it is referred to as deficit in the trade balance.
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National Accounts Statistics:

Gross Domestic Product:

GDP is the sum of gross value added of all resident institutional producer units , plus any
taxes minus any subsidies on products not including the value of their outputs. The term
value added relates to institutional units or sector in a territory engaged in a production,
whereas the term GDP refers to all resident institutional producer units in the country and
value added of any resident institutional producer unit.

GDP is calculated by expenditure approach as the sum of final consumption at purchasers'
prices including, exports of goods and services at FOB value less/minus the sum of imports
at FOB prices (final consumption expenditure plus capital formation and net exports of
goods and services).

GDP Per Capita:
GDP per capita is division of GDP by population in the mid-year.

Inflation Rate Based on Consumer Prices:

General Inflation:

It is a statistical method used to measure changes in the price of goods and services
between two periods , in addition it calculates price levels of certain goods and services
consumed by different segments of society during their daily lives in a specific reference
period (current period) compared with another period referred to as the base period.
Inflation rate indicates the change in the indices resulting from the increase or decrease in
the prices of goods and services.
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Map 1: Geographic Location of GCC Countries Among the World Continents ¥
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WL i Map 2: Geographic Location of GCC Countries Among the Arab Countries
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Map 9: Population Density of State of Qatar Administrative Boundaries by Municipality, 2020
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Map 16: General Marriage Rate Per 1,000 Population (15 Years and Above) in GCC Countries, 2018 and 2022
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Map 23:Early Childhood Education Students in GCC Countries in 2017/2018 and 2021/2022
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bbbl jabao
Data Sources

1l ubbudlabao
Statistical Data Sources

clanllg duudlisd galaill ja ol
Federal Competitiveness and Statistics Authority Center
United Arab Emirates | 8ol dugpsll wljloll @ga

http://www.fcsa.gov.ae

duigrisnllldoganllg biloglsoll dun
Informatics & eGovernment Authority
Kingdom of Bahrain | (yadld4)oo
http://iwww.iga.gov.bh

clanld dolel ddunll

The General Authority for Statistics

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia | &ageull dpell d4looll
http://www.stats.gov.sa

Wloglsollg clanll guidagll j5yoll

The National Center for Statistics and Information
Sultanate of Oman - yloc &ilnluw

http://www.ncsi.gov.om

At gibagll yulaoll
National Planning Council
State of Qatar | jnaddlga
http://lwww.psa.gov.qa

clanl dgjagoll )lall
Central Statistical Bureau
State of Kuwait | wyg4allaga
http://www.csb.gov.kw

dilao)ladh s~ Jlubbodlalno
Geospatial Data Sources

digriallldoganllg blogleoll &iyn
Informatics & eGovernment Authority
Kingdom of Bahrain | yyadld4loo
http://iwww.iga.gov.bh

' Kingdom of Saudi Arabia | &ag=ull duy=ll 44lo0ll

http://www.stats.gov.sa

it claalld dolel duall

:l‘!”::' The General Authority for Statistics
#

’:l |

ilogleolly clanll gikngll j40l

b The National Center for Statistics and Information
Sultanate of Oman | yloc d&ilnluw
http://www.ncsi.gov.om

National Planning Council
State of Qatar | jnaddga

http://www.psa.gov.qa

clanld ayjayollé)lall
Central Statistical Bureau
State of Kuwait | wygalldga

http://www.csb.gov.kw

(6D il pdaidlg gl amso
. Economic and Social Research Institute (esri)
&esri

http://www.arcgis.com/
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